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Limited Review Report for the Interim Financial Statements
To: The Board of Directors of Cleopatra Hospital (S.A.E.) and its subsidiaries

Introduction

We conducted our limited review on the accompanying consolidated interim financial statements of
Cleopatra Hospital (S.A.E.) and its subsidiaries (the "Group") which comprise the consolidated
interim statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020 and the related consolidated interim
statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows
for the three months period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes. The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards. Our
responsibility is limited to express a conclusion on these consolidated financial statements based on

our limited review.
Scope of the limited review

We conducted our limited review in accordance with the Egyptian Standard on Limited Review
Engagements 2410, “Limited Review of Interim Financial Statements Performed by the Auditor of
the Entity”. A limited review of the consolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries,
primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and
other limited review procedures. A limited review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable
us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

Conclusion

In light of our limited review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
accompanying consolidated interim financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its financial performance,
and its cash flows for the three months period then ended in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting

Standards.

Wael Sakr
R.A.A. 26144
F.R.A. 381

18 June 2020
Cairo

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ezzeldeen, Diab & Co., Public Accountants
Plot no 211, Second Sector, City Center, New Cairo 11835, Eqypt, PO Box 170 New Cairo
T: +20 2 2759 7700, F: +20 2 2759 7711, WWW.pWC.CcOm



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E." AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of financial position - At 31 Mareh 2020

(Al amounts in Egyptian Pounds)

Assets

Noa-current sssets

Fixed assets

Right of use

Goodwill

Inuangible assets

Advance payment for investments
Total non-correat assets
Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Due from related parties
Dehtors and other debit balances
Treasury bills

Cash and cash equivalent

Total current assels

Total asseis

Equity

Share capital

Reserves

Retained eamings

Total equity of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Totsl equity

Liabilities

Nor-vurvent Habilities
Lease liability

Deferred tax liabilities

Tots! non-current liabilities
Current Habllities
Provisions

Creditors and other credit balances
Employee incentive plan
Lease liability

Current income Lax liabilities
Total curvent lishilities
Total linbilities

Total equity and Habilittes

- The sccompanying notes from (1) to {33) are i

- Limited review report is aitached
___--.\. A ‘,.
L

Mr. Ahmed Adel Badreldin

Nea Executive Chairman
18 June 2020 P

>

31 Mareh 31 December
Note 2020 2019
6 931,846,306 908,495,300
32 9,704,795 10.247.595
7 369.263.334 369.263.334
7 44,354,000 44,354,000
8 21,693,653 4

1.376,862.088 1.332.360,229

9 64,923,927 49.260.610
10 382,186,666 337,153,648
29 255,000 2,019.705
1 129,245,570 105,227,154
12 149,064.723 50,099,258
13 591,225.855 791.267.839
1,316,901,741 1335,028214
7 — VO

17 800,000,000 800,000,000
18 284,394,548 284,394,548
828,269,690 746.183.287
1,912,664,238 1,830,577,835

19 109.793,017 103,926.707
2,022,457255_ 1,934,504,542

32 5,385,289 5,834,432
27 73.903,107 74,794,486
79,288,396 $0.628,918

14 16.114.290 15.558.340
15 357.235.893 442334530
16 129.072.581 129.072.581
32 2,793,532 2,651,440
2 86,801,882 62,638.092
592,018,178 653,254,983

671306574 _ 732,583,501

2,693,763 829 2,667.388.443

. Al
Mahmond  Mr. Abmed Gashal
Director Gremp CFO
N eD N



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Egyptian Pounds)

Operating revenue

Less:
Operating costs
Gross profit

Add / (Less):
General and administrative expenses

Costs of acquisition activates
Provisions

Other income

Finance income

Finance expenses
Profit for the period before income tax

Current tax

Deferred tax
Profit after income tax

Profit for:
Owners of the parent company

Non-controlling interests

Profit after income tax

Earning per share

31 March 31 March
Note 2020 2019
20 502,881,418 415,978,654
21 (331,661,025) (261,817,388)
171,220,393 154,161,266
22 (70,015,919) (98,646,928)
- (523,257)
14 (3,884.,203) (2,676,078)
24 1,756,360 2,022,596
25 18,290,349 29,379,431
25 (623,759) (3,157,347)
116,743,221 80,559,683
26 (29,681,886) (26,303,887)
27 891,378 884,069
87,952,713 55,139,865
82,086,403 53,503,936
19 5,866,310 1,635,929
87,952,713 55,139,865
28 0.05 0.03

- The accompanying notes from (1) to (33) are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Egyptian Pounds)

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for:

Owners od the parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit after income tax

31 March 31 March
Note 2020 2019
87,952,713 55,139,865
87,952,713 55,139,865
82,086,403 53,503,936
5,866,310 1,635,929
87,952,713 55,139,865

- The accompanying notes from (1) to (33) are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Egyptian Pounds) 31 March 31 March
Note 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 116,743,221 80,559,683
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows
from operating activities
Fixed asserts depreciation 6 20,701,096 13,971,448
Profit from sale of fixed assets 24 (233,789) (236,794)
Impairment of inventories 9 14,051 161,115
Impairment of trade receivables 10 13,014,335 31,741,418
Provisions 14 3,884,203 2,676,078
Employee incentive plan 16 - 22,341,073
Interests and commissions 25 379,893 2,079,053
Interests payable 25 (18,290,349) (29,379,431)
Operating profits before changes in assets and
liabilities 136,212,661 123,913,643
Changes in assets and liabilities
Change in inventories (15,677,368) (6,247,303)
Change in trade receivables (58,047,353) (46,301,249)
Change in due from related parties 1,764,705 (4,509,456)
Change in debtors and other debit balances 20,006,021 (17,405,823)
Change in creditors and other credit balances (49,916,458) 30,218,256
Provision used 14 (3,328,253) (2,170,125)
Income tax paid (5,518,096) (57,700,000)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 25,495,859 19,797,943
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase fixed assets (7,468,084) (13,768,572)

Payments for projects under construction
Prepayments for purchasing fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Payments under investments
Treasury bills
Payments for business acquisition
Interests received
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank overdraft
Payment of borrowings and bank overdraft
Dividends paid
Interests and commissions paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents during the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 13

(36,071,349)
(43,968,212)
263,918
(57,182,882)
(98,965,465)

18,234,124

(49,624,309)
(2,709,932)
492 805

(25,000,000)

28,380,522

(225,157,950) (62,229,486)
. 27,582,598

; (111,103,047)

- (14,284)

(379,893) (14,455,961)

(379,893) (97,990,694)

(200,041,984)  (140,422,237)
791,267,839 953,422,594
591,225,855 813,000,357

- The accompanying notes from (1) to (33) are integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

1. Introduction

Cleopatra Hospital Company (Lasheen and Partners) was established as a limited partnership on 19 July
1979.The decision of the Chairman of Investment Authority No. 4092 of 2005 was issued on 27 June
2005 authorising the transfer of the legal type of Cleopatra Hospital (Lasheen and Partners) from a
"limited partnership" into Cleopatra Hospital Company "S.A.E." in accordance with the provisions of
Law No. (8) Of 1997 and Law No. (95) Of 1992.

The Company's purpose is to establish a private hospital to provide advanced modern health and medical
services, as well as the medical care of inpatients. The Company may have interest or participate in
any manner in companies or other firms which carry on similar activities in Egypt or abroad. The
Company may acquire, merge or affiliate such entities under the General Authority for Investment.

The Company is located at 39, 41 Cleopatra Street, Heliopolis, Cairo.
Care Health is the main shareholder in the company with a 37.87% shareholding.

On 16 September 2015, Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E. acquired 52.7% of the total shares of Cairo
Specialised Hospital. Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E share in Cairo Specialised Hospital has changed to reach
53.67% due to the write oft of treasury shares, As of 28 September 2017, the shareholding rate has
become 53.88% as a result of the company purchasing shares of non-controlling interests in Cairo
Specialist Hospital. As of 14 November 2019, the percentage of the contribution of Cleopatra Hospital
Company S.A.E. has changed to 54.58% for the subscription in the capital increase of the Cairo
Specialist Hospital Company.

On 22 September 2015, Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E. acquired 99.92% of the total shares of Nile Badrawi
Hospital Company, According to the decision of the Board of Directors of the Nile Hospital Badrawi on
13 March 2019 and the approval of the Board of Directors of the Cleopatra Hospital Company on
14 March 2019, the authorized capital of the Nile Badrawy Company has been increased by EGP 180
million to become EGP 200 million and this has been subscribed in the amount of EGP 121 million to
make the paid-up capital EGP 141 million. The amount of the capital increase has been paid in full by
the Cleopatra Hospital Company, and consequently, the contribution of Cleopatra Company is 99.989%.

On 24 January 2016, Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E. acquired 99.99% of the total shares of Al-Shorouk
Hospital.

On 6 August 2017 CHG Medical Services was established with a capital of EGP 250,000 and on 22
March 2018, the Extraordinary General Assembly approved the amendment of some articles of the
company's articles of association as follows:

- Amending the authorized capital from EGP 250,000 to EGP 2,000,000, the issued and the paid up
from EGP 250,000 to EGP 312,500 with a value of EGP 10 per share.

- The capital was underwritten by Cleopatra Hospital Company through preferred shares that entitles
the owner to three times the ordinary share in the profits and voting on general assembly decisions.

- According to the above, the Cleopatra Hospital Company’s contribution to the capital amounts to
20%, entitling it to 60% in voting rights and dividends as preferred shares.

On 23 December 2018, CHG Pharma was established to manage pharmacies with a capital of EGP
250,000 and Cleopatra Hospital Company's contribution is 98% of the capital.

On 18 March 2019, Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E acquired the fixed assets, operations and management of
Queens Hospital.



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Introduction (continued)

On 1 November 2019, Cleopatra Hospital Company finalized the acquisition of Al Kateb Hospital
Operations, land and building, and on 27 November, Cleopatra Hospital Company established CHG for
Hospitals with a capital of EGP 30 million with ownership percentage of 99.99%.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issuance by the Board of Directors of
the Parent Company on 18 June 2020.

2. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

A. Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Egyptian
Accounting Standards (EASs) and the relevant laws. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with EASs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas where the most significant
accounting estimates and judgements applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

The EAS's require the reference to the most recent issues by other parties with which they are
associated, which are responsible for setting accounting standards and use similar scopes and
concepts to develop accounting standards and philosophies and other procedures accepted in the
industry, to the extent at which these concepts do not conflict with the requirements of the Egyptian
Standards on Auditing, which deal with similar related subjects, definitions, basis of recognition,
concepts on the measurement of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses included in the scope of
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements when there is no Egyptian standard on
accounting or legal requirements that explain the accounting process for certain balances or
transactions.

Matters that have not been addressed in the Egyptian Standards are subject to the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) until the Egyptian Standards that address such matters are
issued.

B. New Egyptian Accounting Standards (“EAS”) and interpretations adopted

In 28 March 2019, the minister of Investment issued a decree no. 69 for 2019 which includes new
standards and amendments to the existing standards. The amendments in the EASs have been
published in the official gazette on 7 April 2019. The group has applied the following accounting
standards, amendments and interpretations for the first time on its annual reporting periods starting
from 1 January 2019.

Adopted standards

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (22) - “earning per share” - All establishments that apply the
Egyptian accounting standards should calculate and display earning per share in the profits
according to Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (22).

-8-



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

New Egyptian Accounting Standards (“EAS”) and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (49) - “Lease Contracts” - First Stage (Lease Contracts
subject to Law 95 of 1995 is recognized in the statement of the financial position as an asset (the
right to use the leased asset) and a financial obligation to pay the lease payments. Except for the
short-term and the small valued lease contracts.

New standards to be adopted

Some new and revised accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the
financial statements for the financial years beginning on or after [ January 2020. On April 12, 2020,
the Financial Supervisory Authority decided to postpone the application of amendments to the
Egyptian Accounting Standards to the interim financial statements and limit them to the annual
financial statements by the end of 2020.

(1) EAS No. (47) — “Financial instruments”:

Standard name

EAS 47 “Financial instruments”

Nature of change

EAS 47, addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and expects the
following impact from the application of the new standard on 1 January
2020. On April 12, 2020, the Financial Supervisory Authority decided to
postpone the application of amendments to the Egyptian Accounting
Standards to the interim financial statements and limit them to the annual
financial statements by the end of 2020.

The company's financial assets consist of the following:

Trade receivables

Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Related parties

Impact

Trade receivables and amounts due from related parties and bank balances
are debt instruments currently classified as loans and receivables and are
measured at the cost consumed under Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
26. The Group has estimated that it meets the terms of the classification at
the cost consumed according to Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47,
where it is are cash flows from principle payments and interest payments
only, and the company's business model is to maintain and collect debt
instruments.

There will be no impact on the Group's registration of financial obligations,
as the new requirements affect the recording of financial liabilities
recorded at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does not have
any of these obligations. The rules for de-recognition have been transferred
from the Egyptian Accounting Standard 26 “Financial Instruments:
Measurement and Recognition” and have not been changed.




CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

New Egyptian Accounting Standards (“EAS”) and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

The new impairment model requires recognition of provisions for
impairment based on expected credit losses instead of credit losses incurred
only, as is the case in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standard
26. It applies to financial assets classified at amortized cost and debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
and contract assets Under Egyptian Accounting Standard 48, “Revenue
from Contracts concluded with Clients”, Debt Lease Balances, Loan
Commitments, and Some Financial Guarantee Contracts. And based on the
evaluations implemented to date.

The new standard also introduces extended terms of disclosure and changes
in presentation. It is expected to change the nature and size of the Group's
disclosures regarding its financial instruments, especially in the year in
which the new standard is applied.

Mandatory application
date/ Date of adoption

by group

Applies to financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The
Group will apply the new rules retroactively from 1 January 2020 taking
the practicable methods permitted under the standard. Comparative figures
for 2019 will not be modified.

(2) EAS No. (48) — “Revenue from contracts with customers”:

Standard name

EAS 48 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

Nature of change

It issued a new standard for revenue recognition, replacing Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. 11 covering contracts for sales of goods and
services and Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 8 covering construction
contracts.

The new standard is based on the principle of revenue recognition when
transferring control of goods or services to a customer.

application date/
Date of adoption by

group

Impact The effects of applying the new standard on the company's financial
statements are being evaluated, and revenue is measured for all existing
contracts in force under Egyptian Accounting Standard Model 48
consisting of five steps.

Mandatory Mandatory for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The

company intends to apply the new standard using a modified approach to
retroactively applying, which means that the cumulative effect of the
application will be recognized in the retained earnings from 1 January
2020, and that comparative figures will not be modified. On April 12,2020,
the Financial Supervisory Authority decided to postpone the application of
amendments to the Egyptian Accounting Standards to the interim financial
statements and limit them to the annual financial statements by the end of
2020.

-10 -




CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

New Egyptian Accounting Standards (“EAS”) and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

(3)EAS No. (49) — “Leases”:

Standard name

EAS 49 “Lease contracts” stage two (lease contract) except for those which
were subject to Law 95 for the year 1995.

Nature of change

Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (49) for rental contracts was issued,
which requires two-stage implementation. The first stage relates to leasing
contracts that were subject to Law 95 of 1995 and is applicable in the
financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The explanation
above shows the impact of the application of the first stage on the financial
statements. The second stage is related to leasing contracts other than those
that were subject to Law 95 of 1995 and is applicable for financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

In accordance with the new standard, at the statement of financial position
an asset is recognised as (the right to use the leased asset) and a financial
obligation to make the lease payments. Except for the short-term and small-
valued leasing contracts.

Impact

The group has formed a team for the application of the standard, and it has
been found that the group has contracts that meet the first stage. The
application has been implemented and there is no effect on the retained
earnings in the beginning of the period or the profits of the year because
the contract to which the standard applies has been engaged to during the
year 2019 and for the second stage of the Egyptian Accounting Standard
No. 49, the team reviewed the rental arrangements other than those that
were subject to Law 95 for the year 1995 in the group, in light of the new
rent accounting rules.

Mandatory
application date/
Date of adoption by

group

The group will apply the second stage of Egyptian Accounting Standard
No. 49 to operating lease contracts from the mandatory date of application
from 1 January 2020. The group intends to use the practical means
provided by the standard and the comparison numbers for the year will not
be modified before the initial application of the standard. The right of use
assets arising from operating lease contracts will be measured at the
amount of the lease liability at the date of the initial application (adjusted
for any advance or due rental expense). On April 12, 2020, the Financial
Supervisory Authority decided to postpone the application of amendments
to the Egyptian Accounting Standards to the interim financial statements
and limit them to the annual financial statements by the end of 2020.

C. Basis of consolidation

1. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the companies (including special purpose entities) with which the Group does
not deal and shall not have rights in variable returns through its participation in the subsidiary,
and shall have the ability to impact such returns through its authority over its subsidiaries. The
Group's authority over the subsidiary arises when the Group has outstanding rights giving the
Group the current ability to instruct relevant activities, such as activities that impact the
subsidiary's returns. Potential voting rights that may be practiced or transferred are taken into
consideration when assessing the existence of authority over the subsidiary.

-11-




CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of a subsidiary from
outside the group by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value or
consideration of assets given by the Company for acquisition and/ or equity instruments issued
and/ or liabilities incurred by the Company, and/or the liabilities accepted on behalf of the
acquire at the date of exchange plus any costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition.
Net assets, including the identifiable contingent liabilities acquired at their fair value at the date
of acquisition, are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the mentioned net
assets, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss.

In case the acquisition process is carried out by an entity under joint control, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. The historical
cost method is used where assets and liabilities are transferred from the consolidated financial
statements to the highest joint control entity which consolidated the transferred company. If
this is not possible, transfer will be made at the same value stated in the transferred company's
books. The difference between the carrying value of the net assets referred to and the cost of
acquisition is recognised in equity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. Inter-companies transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Group's companies are excluded.
Unrealised losses are eliminated, and are considered as an indication of the impairment of the
transferred assets.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries are changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted at the Group's level.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the following

subsidiaries:
Country of Percentage of
incorporation ownership
Al-Shorouk Hospital Company S.A.E. Egypt 99.99%
Nile Badrawi Hospital Company S.A.E. Egypt 99.989%
Cairo Specialised Hospital Company S.A.E. Egypt 54.58%
CHG for Medical Services Company S.A.E. Egypt 20% (Preferred shares)
CHG Pharma for Pharmacies Management
Company S.AE. Egypt 98%

2. Sale, acquisition and non-controlling interests
The Group recognises sales and acquisitions made with the minority, as transactions with
parties outside the Group. Gains or losses on disposal of equity to the minority, are recognised
in the consolidated equity. Where purchase is made from minority, the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying value of the share purchased in the subsidiary's assets is
recognised as a reserve in the consolidated equity.

-12 -



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

3. Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. A
shareholding in these entities ranges between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting,
investments are initially recognised at cost.

Goodwill arising from shareholding in associates is stated within investment cost net of
accumulated impairment.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profit and loss is recognised in the
profitand loss statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in associates' reserves
is recognised in reserves, in exchange for the adjustment of carrying value of investment
against the Group's share in post-acquisition changes in equity after the acquisition date.
When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other receivables or unsecured borrowings, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Company’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies applied in the associates are adjusted when necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

D. Segment reporting

Business segments are reported in line with the reports provided internally to the senior
management, which makes decisions related to resources allocation and evaluation of segments'
performance in the Group. The senior management is represented in Group's executive management
committee. The segment reports are provided to the Group based on each company, as each
subsidiary is considered a separate business segment.

E. Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates (‘the functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pounds (EGP), which is the
Group’s functional and presentation currency.

@)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into the measurement currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the revaluation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the consolidated financial
position date are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

F. Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and bringing it to a ready-for-
use condition.

All expenses attributed to the acquisition and establishment of fixed assets are recognised at the
accounts of projects under construction. When the fixed asset is complete and brought to a ready-
for-use condition, the asset's amount is transferred to the account of fixed assets.

All repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the fiscal year
in which they are incurred. Major renovation costs are capitalised over the asset's cost when they
are expected to raise the expected pattern of the Company's future economic benefits over the
estimated original benefits of the asset acquisition. These costs will be depreciated at the lower of
the asset's remaining useful life or the expected useful life of these renovations, the net carrying
amount of the disposed part is eliminated.

The straight line method is used to calculate the depreciation by reducing the asset's value to its
salvage value over the estimated useful life except the land that is not considered a depreciable
asset. The fixed assets' salvage value and useful life are reviewed annually, and adjusted if
appropriate.

The depreciation rates by type of asset are as follows:

Machinery, equipment and devices 10%
Furniture 15%
Buildings 2.5%
Vehicles 20%
Computers 25%
Leasehold improvement Remaining of the lease contract
Acquired assets Over the remaining productive years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than the amount estimated to be recovered from operation. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the realisable value with the net carrying amount,
and the difference is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

G. Intangible assets

1. Goodwill
Goodwill results from the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition of shareholding in subsidiaries over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
assets of the acquired associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill resulting from the
acquisition of a subsidiary is included within intangible assets.

The Group's management conducts analysis annually or at shorter intervals, where there is an
indication for impairment, to estimate whether the carrying value of goodwill is expected to be
fully recovered, and reduce the carrying value of goodwill if it is higher than the expected
recoverable amount. Any losses resulting from impairment of goodwill are charged to the
statement of profit or loss, and cannot be reversed subsequently.

Profits and losses resulting from the disposal of investments in subsidiaries or associates
comprise the carrying value of the goodwill related to the investment.
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CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of measurement of impairment.
Allocation is made on cash generating units or a group of cash generating units that are expected
to directly benefit from goodwill.

2. Trade name
Trade name is included within intangible assets, and represents the trade name of both Nile
Badrawi Hospital S.A.E. and Al-Shorouk Hospital S.A.E., resulting from the acquisition at fair

value at the date of acquisition.

3. Non-competition agreement
The fair value of the recognised asset is depreciated in such agreements over the period during
which it is expected to beneficial. The period is specified to be two years long.

H. Inventories

Inventories are evaluated at the lower of actual cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the moving average method and includes purchase cost and other direct costs. The net realisable
value comprises the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less realisable
expenses. Allowance is made for slow moving inventories based on management’s assessment of
inventory movements.

I. Financial assets

First — Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories at initial recognition
depending on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. The management of the
Company has classified its financial assets within the group of loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables:
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable values that are

not quoted in an active market.

They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after
the financial position date. In this case, they are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables include accounts receivables, cash and bank balances, and due from related
parties.

Second: Initial and subsequent measurement:

1. The financial assets are measured on acquisition at fair value plus transaction costs.

2. The financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from such assets has
expired or has been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

3. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets (continued)

Third: Impairment of financial assets:

Assets recognised at amortised cost
The Company assesses, at the end of each financial period, whether there is evidence that a financial

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Impairment of a financial asset or group of financial assets is recognised if an impairment evidence
exists as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition (a "loss event")
and if the loss event (or events) has an impact on the future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably measured.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are
experiencing financial difficulty, default or delinquency in payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is
a decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as future changes or economic conditions that
correlate with the impairment evidence.

Fixed assets' impairment loss is measured at amortised cost, which is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows (after eliminating
future losses that have not occurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment decreases and the decrease can be related
to an event occurring after the initial recognition (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the reversal of the impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

J. Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, and so are not depreciated, are reviewed for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal of the asset or the
value expected to be recovered its use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are independent cash inflows.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that
impairment losses recognised for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. Loss of impairment,
which should not exceed the fair value that will be determined (net of depreciation), is reversed.
Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, excluding goodwill.

K. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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L. Legal reserve

As required by the parent Company, 5% of the net profit shall be transferred to constitute the legal
reserve, once the financial statements are approved by the Company's ordinary general assembly
meeting. Such transfer may be discontinued when the reserve equals 50% of the Company's issued
and paid up capital. Whenever this reserve is lower than this percentage, the deduction should be
continued. This reserve is not available for distribution.

M. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of
past events. It is expected that this settlement will result in an outflow of the Company's resources,
which ensures that economic benefits will arise, and it is probable that the resource usage will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of this obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

N. Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business. Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value of products and services
received from others, whether they have been billed or not. Long term liabilities are recognised at
their present value, and trade payables are subsequently shown at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

O. Borrowings and advances

Borrowings are initially recorded at received amounts less the cost of obtaining the loan.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method; any
difference between proceeds (net of borrowing cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective yield

method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of this asset. The cost of borrowing, which is
capitalised, is determined based on actual borrowing costs, which are incurred by the Group during
the year due to borrowing process, less any income realised from the temporary investment of funds
borrowed.

Borrowings and advances are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer the settlement of such obligations for a period of not less than 12 months after the
date of the financial statements.
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_(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

P. Employees' benefits

(1)

@

Pension and insurance scheme

The Group pays contributions to the Public Authority for Social Insurance on a mandatory basis
in accordance with the rules of Social Security Law. The Group has no further obligations
other than the payment of its obligations. The regular contributions are recognised as periodic
costs for the period in which they are due and as such are included in staff costs.

Employee incentive plan

Cleopatra Hospital grants units of cash bonus to the selected employees of the Group according
to the criteria, basis, and rules established by the Remuneration Committee to activate this plan.
To connect the interests of the beneficiaries of the system with the interest of the shareholders
and to ensure that the participants with high efficiency obtain the appropriate incentive to
support the growth and stability and maintain the high-efficiency workers within the
management team.

The remuneration committee of the Company supervises the implementation of the system
under the control and supervision of the Company's Board of Directors.

System elements
Each beneficiary shall be given units of monetary reward or a fixed percentage of the amounts
allocated to the system in accordance with the award of the remuneration committee.

The remuneration committee shall determine the date of grant.

Amounts due to the plan are determined according to a specific mechanism and include the
following:

A) Payments calculated on the basis of the difference between the average market value of the
Parent Company's shares on 2 June 2020 during the six months preceding the date of the
financial position and the share price at the date of its public offering on the Stock Exchange
on 2 June 2016.

B) Payments are calculated on the basis of the difference between earnings before interest, tax
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) on the maturity date 2 June 2020 and 2 June 2016.

- The beneficiaries' entitlements from the system shall be paid within one month of the
end of the fourth year of the system ("maturity date" or within one month from the date
of any entitlement to the system in accordance with its terms and conditions).

- This system is not a system of remuneration and motivation for the employees of the
Company by granting or giving any rights in the shares of the Company as this system
is a system of monetary incentives.

- The Remuneration Committee shall be entitled to amend the mechanism for calculating
amounts due in light of any developments related to the Company's activities or
achieving its objectives and after the presentation to the Board of Directors for approval
and clarification of the justifications for this amendment. The Remuneration
Committee is entitled to reallocate units that have not been used or are available in
general to existing or new beneficiaries.
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Employees' benefits (continued)

- The Group recognizes the cost of incentives related to the services rendered by the
employees under the system over the period in which the service is performed. The
Group recognizes the liability for the system at the date of each financial position in
accordance with the fair value of the consideration expected to be paid to the employees
on the grant date. The fair value of these liabilities is estimated at the date of the
financial position taking into account all the circumstances relating to the expected
discounted cash flows at the effective rate of return applicable.

- The Group recognises the fair value of the employees' services received as expenses in
the statement of profit or loss.

Q. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, including cash
balances, trade and notes payable for rendering medical services and sale of medicine throughout
the Group's ordinary course of business, and excluding sales taxes, deductions or discounts.

Revenues are recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits related to the sale process will flow to the Group; and when other
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The revenue
amount will not be considered reliably measurable unless all contingent liabilities are settled. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Medical services revenue

The Group renders several medical services, including surgeries, admission, medical supervision,
analyses, investigations, x-rays and outpatient services. The medical service income is recognised
when the service is rendered to the patient.

Sale of medicine revenue

The Group sells drugs through the hospital's pharmacy or when giving them to inpatients admitted
in the hospital. The Group recognises the revenues of medicines when the patient receives the
medicine or when the medicine is used for the treatment of inpatients.

Rental income
The Groups rents spaces to others. Such rental is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over

the period of contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable generated from the recognition of interest is impaired, the carrying amount will be
reduced to its recoverable amount.
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R. Leases

1. Lease in accordance to law 95 for the year 1995
Before 1 January 2019, leases were accounted in accordance to Law 95 for the year 1995, if the
tenant is not obliged to purchase the asset at the end of the lease term; the lease is registered in
the register of the Companies' Department; the lease grants the tenant the right to purchase the
assets at a definite date and a definite amount; and the contract period represents at least 75% of
the expected useful life of the asset, at least, or the present value of the total lease payments
represents at least 90% of the value of the asset.

The cost of lease, including the cost of maintenance of the leased assets are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in which they occurred. If
the Group decides to exercise the right to purchase the leased assets, the cost of the right to
purchase is capitalised as a fixed asset, which is depreciated over the useful life of the expected
remaining life of the asset in the same method followed with similar assets.

After 1 January 2019, the company evaluated the effect of applying the revised Egyptian rental
standard No. (49) to all lease contracts subject to Law 95 of 1995,

On the date of the initial recognition, the company recognized the right of use asset in the
statement of financial position with an amount equal to the value of the lease contract commitment
after deduction of the rent paid in advance. Subsequently, the right of use is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The right of use is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
these assets or the lease term, whichever is less - unless there is a right to the asset at the end of
the contract since the company has a right at the end of the lease term.

The first measurement of the lease obligations is made at the present value of future payments
discounted using the additional interest rate that the company borrows, and later is measured using
the effective interest rate method.

The right of use, as well as lease obligations, are remeasured in the following cases:
1- Change in the rental price.

2- Amending the lease contract.

3- Adjusting the rental period.

2. Lease other the rent in accordance to Law 95 for the year 1995
Leases in which the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as

operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any discounts received from the lessor) are
recognised as expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.
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S. Current and deferred income tax

The income tax for the period is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the financial
position date. The management periodically evaluates the tax situation through tax returns, taking
into account the differences that may arise from some interpretations issued by administrative or
regulatory authorities, and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authority.

Deferred income tax is fully recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. The deferred income taxes are not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability other than those arising from business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable income.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates in accordance with the law prevailing at the
consolidated financial position date that are expected to apply when the deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

T. Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s General Assembly of Shareholders.

U. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparation of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, bank current accounts, and term deposits with maturities of three months of

the date of deposit.
V. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be obtained for the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value
measurement is based on the assumption that the transaction of selling an asset or transferring a
liability occurs either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market.

The Company must be able to reach the primary market or the most beneficial market.

The fair value of the asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
might use when pricing the asset or liability by assuming that market participants act for their
economic benefit.

Fair value measurement for a non-financial asset takes into consideration the market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits through the best and ultimate use of the asset, or by selling
them to another market participant that would ensure the best and ultimate use of the asset.
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Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The Company uses valuation techniques appropriate in the circumstances for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair value of all assets and liabilities in the financial statements are measured and included in the
fair value hierarchy below, on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.

- Level 1 - Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 - Other valuation techniques where all lowest level inputs that are significant to the fair
value measurement are directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3 - Valuation techniques where all lowest level inputs that are significant to the fair value

measurement are not observable.

As for assets and liabilities in the separate financial statements, on a periodic basis, the company
determines the level, in the case of transfers between levels within the hierarchy during the
revaluation of the classification (based on the lowest input levels that are considered to be
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety) at the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for measuring the fair value either
regularly or irregularly. External valuators are engaged in the valuation of significant assets. The
criteria for selecting the valuator include their knowledge of the market, reputation, independence
and compliance with the professional standards. The management determines the valuation
techniques that should be applied on a case by case basis.

The management in cooperation with the Company's external valuators compare the changes in fair
value for each asset and liability with the relative external sources to assess whether these changes

are reasonable.

The fair value of non-current investments is determined based on the discounted cash flows, pricing
models, net assets of invested companies or prices in counterpart markets.
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3. Financial risk management

(1) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including the risk
of change in foreign currency and risk of change in interest rates), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group is not exposed to any price risk as it does not have financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss. The Group’s management aims to minimise potential adverse effects
of such risks on the financial performance of the Group by the monitoring process performed
by the Finance Department, Company's General Manager, and Executive Committee at the
level of the Parent Company.

The Group does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge specific risks.

A) Market risk

i

ii.

Risk of change in foreign currency rates

Foreign exchange risk arises from the foreign currency rates that affect the payments
and receipts in foreign currency, as well as the valuation of assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies. Given the nature of the Group's activities, the Group does not
undertake transactions denominated in foreign currencies as it carries out all purchases
in the Egyptian Pound. The Group's very limited revenue in foreign currencies are
generated from certain foreign embassies. The management considers that foreign
currency denominated balances are insignificant.

At the end of the period, the net financial assets of foreign currencies before impairment
are denominated in Egyptian Pound as follows:

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
US Dollars 13,851,775 12,790,017
Euro 84,369 372,677
GBP 319,289 51,784

If the EGP had been more/ less by 10% against foreign currencies, with all other
variables held constant, net profit after taxes would have increased / decreased as

follows:

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
US Dollars 1,385,178 1,279,002
Euro 8,437 37,268
GBP 31,929 5,178

Fair value and cash flows risks resulting from the change in interest rates

The Parent Company obtained long-term loans at interest rates linked to the corridor
rate declared by the Central Bank of Egypt, and therefore, it is exposed to cash flow
risks.
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Financial risk management (continued)

B)

O

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and deposits with banks as well as credit risks associated with
the Group's customers. Risk management is monitored for the Group taken as a whole,
through the executive management, the central finance department and the executive
committee at the level of the Parent Company.

For banks, only highly credit rating banks with high solvency are dealt with and are subject
to the control of the Central Bank of Egypt.

For customers, each Hospital's management analyses the credit risks of each potential new
customer before being approved as a credit customer by the Finance Director and the
General Manager in accordance with the Group's established policies, including Cleopatra
Hospital Company or the subsidiaries. The Parent Company's Executive Committee
follows-up the compliance with credit terms, and reviews cases of default and debt ageing
report to take the necessary decisions whether to cancel the credit or to refer the defaulted
customer to the Legal Department for their necessary actions.

The management makes impairment of 100% for customers in default for more than 150
days as of the date of the invoice. After deducting the amounts that expected to be collected
after calculating the loss given default rate. The management also establishes the Group-
based provision for impairment at historical default rates. The management calculates
historical default rates for each customer individually on a monthly basis for defaulted
customer balances for more than 150 days until 360 days from the financial position date.
Based on those rates, the management calculates a provision on defaulted customer’s
receivables for less than 150 days.

Cash at banks is placed with local banks that are subject to the supervision of the Central
Bank of Egypt. Accordingly, management believes that credit risk resulting from the cash
at bank is limited.

Below are the balances that are exposed to the credit risks:

31 March 31 December

2020 2019
Cash at banks 589,190,693 788,913,329
Trade receivables 469,475,924 411,428,571
Accrued income 2,220,126 2,383,756
Employees loans custodies 1,932,938 1,597,912
Due from related parties 255,000 2,019,705
Liquidity risk

The management makes cash flow projections on monthly basis, which are discussed
during the Executive Committee's meeting of the Parent Company, and takes the necessary
actions to negotiate with suppliers, follow-up the collection process and manage the
inventory balances in order to ensure sufficient cash is maintained to discharge the
Company's liabilities.

-24-



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)

@)

&)

The table below shows the Company's liabilities by maturity:
Below 3 monthsto 1yeartoS$ Above

3 months 1 year years S years

Suppliers and notes payable 158,815,840 34,523,237 - -
Accrued expenses 134,720,773 3,598,741 - -

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to maximise returns for shareholders and provide benefits to the
stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, as is
followed by other companies operating in the same industry.

The Group's management monitors capital structure using the gearing ratio, which is calculated
as the ratio of net debt to total borrowings, advances, notes payable, and due to related parties,
less cash. The total capital represents the total net debt in addition to shareholders' equity as
shown in the consolidated financial position.

Net debt to total invested capital as at 31 March 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as follows:

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Creditors and other credit balances 357,235,893 442,334,530
Employee incentive plan 129,072,581 129,072,581
Less: Cash on hand and at banks (591,225,855) (791,267,839)
Net debt (104,917,381) (219,860,728)
Total shareholders' equity 2,022,457 255 1,934,504,542
Total invested capital 1,917,539,874 1,714,643,814
Net debts to total invested capital (5.47%) (12.82%)

Estimations of fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of the current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amount,
after taking into account any impairment.

4. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will seldom equal the actual results.
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Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. The Group reviews the provision at the date of each financial position, and
adjusts it to reflect the best current estimate by using the appropriate advisory expertise.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group's management evaluates goodwill and other intangible assets annually to determine any
impairment in goodwill. The carrying amount of goodwill is reduced if it is higher than the expected
recoverable amount. Any losses resulting from the impairment of goodwill is charged to the statement
of profit or loss, and cannot be reversed subsequently, (Note 7) illustrates more information regarding
this.

Impairment of trade receivables and customers

Impairment of receivables and customer balances is estimated by monitoring ageing of receivables. The
Group's management examines the credit position and ability of debtors and customers to make
payments for their past due debts. Impairment is recognised for amounts due from debtors and
customers whose credit position does not allow them to pay their dues as believed by the management.
In addition, the Group calculates impairment on the Group basis for customers and balances that
suffered impairment but not yet determined, by reference to historical default rates applicable to some

of the Group companies.

Employee incentive plan

Cleopatra Hospital Group has an incentive plan for some employees of the parent company. The
remuneration committee of the parent company oversees the implementation of the plan under the
supervision of the parent company's board of directors. Each beneficiary is granted a cash bonus or a

fixed percentage of the amounts allocated to the plan.

This plan is not considered as a plan of remuneration and motivation for employees in the group by
granting any rights in the shares of the parent company, as it is a plan of cash incentives based in part
on the value of shares. The values of the components of the plan are calculated at current discount rates,
either for share-based payments or for payments calculated on the basis of the difference between
(EBITDA) and maturity as of 2 June 2020 and 2 June 2016. The discounts rates used in calculating the
system values are also reviewed with the market discount rates and reviewing the calculated valued by
system elements with the approved five years plans from the management yearly.

The plan consists of the following:

A) Payments calculated on the basis of the difference between the market value of the Parent
Company's shares on 2 June 2020 during the six months preceding the date of the financial position
and the share price at the date of its public offering on the Stock Exchange on 2 June 2016.

B) Payments are calculated on the basis of the difference between earnings before interest, tax
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) on the maturity date 2 June 2020 and 2 June 2016.

- Liabilities are estimated at each financial position date based on the present value of the
expected cash flows discounted at market rate of return.

- These estimates are calculated by an independent export and include the impact of market
conditions using the total shareholders return (TSR) as well as other non-market conditions
using earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA).

- The assumption used, including the discount rates and expected performance are reviewed in
accordance with approved management plans annually and assumptions adjusted if necessary.

-26 -



IN\NI

S6T'8SI'0T  L6T16LT w6t LET16S - - - 9TV'LSST  1€0WITT  9SSOLLY  9TSYOTL uorjerdadap syesse paxig
cerioessy - 96£°T90°1 980°619 - & : 00S°98L°81  FISTEIE W1 9¥9POL'S  16T€00°E aIryipuadxo [eyde)
UEI RENTe)
€ILTS6'L8  (I1Z'SES‘D) 6L Sl (611°789°C) S70°'c6 (6v+'987) (881°L9L°C) 66LLE6'L  LIO'BTS'O1  6SO‘THT'OI  L81°896°09 poriad 10y 3oy
(089°L97°€8) (S15°0€) (€LLLiry)  (Lg19¢)  (LO0'LD) (612°750) (L68°LY0°E) (6S8°88L Y1) (£L6°1LTS1) (LOTbHI61) (6S6°S95°ST) Sonuaaal pue sosuadxe 1oyl
€6£°0TT 1LY (969°P0S‘T) 991°7€T°9 (8pL'0TEE)  T€0'0TI (0€T've) (16T°6IL)  8S99TLTT  065°008'ST 99L‘SSE'SE  9PI‘PES'os woad ssoun
(STO'199°1€E) v6S PSL ] (L8TyLLLL) (16¥°008F) - 91°L167)  (11TTIL01) ($9€°789°8S) (T90°661°LS) (61L°68£99) (£ZEOPESIL) $1502 Sune1adQ
81V 188705 (067°65T°€) €SV 900PT  EPL6LYL TE0°0TI 1€6°T8¥'C 0T6'T66'6  £20°60P 18 TS9666C8  S8PSLLI0L 69 VL8 10T anuaaar gunesado
_mmo_ 10 HEO.E ,wo ucoaoﬁﬁm
PLS'O0E' LY (ZET'ISILE)  IIV'LLS'6]l  €IS'8SLOE  STS'LE 8II°6EL6 TLOOLP' Py  868°LSO'IL  $£9°89TIOI 96IPET6IL 6ES'LOFIIE sanijiqery g0,
96€'88T'6L  TYTV6SIS ($$£°95) 660°TLL - - - VOL'BLLT  LTOOISL  L6T'8PL'S  1TEIVTS SenIIqe]] JULNI-UON
8LI'810°T6S (PLYV'SPL'88)  SOLCE6'61  +IL98S0C  STSLE 811°6£L°6 TLIOIY VY VEL'6L8'BY  LO9SSH'E6  668°S8Y0OI1 S1T9TT'E0E SONI[IQeI] JUIIND
6T8'€9L'€69°T (OIT'CIOPSS) SOCCITPT LG IFO'ST  08L999°L  CPT'SPLL 9L9609°TT  PLTLEC'LIE GLU'CIS'LIE PLITIF'E8E LOT'SSE 660°T $39ssE [£)0],
IPLT069TE L (L99°0VL'8L)  09L°986°TT  ¥TSVHL'6  08SL999L  SHTSPLL 9L9°609° T  €87°699°T91 TI1°899°CIT +80°66C°SET VL6V TTL SESLELEN )
880°T98°9LET (6VH TLTSLY)  S09°9TT 1 €Th'L68'8 - S - 16L°L99%91 LOT'SHS'IST 060°T9C8F1 19¥°SE1°LLE T S1385® JUDLINO-UON
uonisod
[erouell] JO judtide]s

|v10], judwsnipe spendsoy sjendsoy sjendsoy  juowaZeuBw  SIINAIIG [endsoyy jeadsopf lendsopy Auedwo)

pajepijosuo)) qaey |V susang) 10] HHD sanvwaeyd [EIPII YnodoyS |y  meapegq pasieadg [endsof

d10J 10} HHD JIN 0.a1e)) eaedod))

suwieyqd DHO

JUSWIBAS OB J0J OTOT Y2IBIN | € Papus poiad sypuowr sa1yy sy 10§ papuasaid st yorym quawdes yoeo Jo Arewrwuns e s1 mojog

JUSWB3s ssaulsnq deredos v paispisuod st Arerpisqns yoes se ‘Auedwods yores uo paseq dnoiny ayj 03 papiaoid are
sHodar Juswgas a1 ], "aaPIwwos Juewedeuew sANAxXs s,dnoin ur pajussaidas st Juswageuew Joruas ay [, “dnoin ayy ur souruLIoyied s)uswFes Jo uonen[eAd
PUE UOLEI0[[E $30IN0SAI 0] Paje[a) SUOISIOIP SaxBW YOI JudWaFeurW 101USS JY) 01 AJ[ewaiul papiaoid spodal oy yiim aur| ur pajiodas aie syuswSos ssaursng

Sunuodaa yuswdeg g

(Payels asImIa10 ssajun spunog uendA3H Ul UMOYS oIe S3)0U AU} Ul SJUNOWE [[)

0207 Y2IBIAl I€ PIpUa poriad syjuoul 3a.1) 3y} 10,
SIUIWOIE)S [BIOUBUL PI}LPI[OSUOI IY) 0} SIJON

SUNIVIAISINS SLI ANV «d'V'Ss, ANVAINOD TVLIJSOH VHLVJOATD



lel

uonerdaldap sjosse paxij
danypuadxa feude)
Sw@l 190

A8aA 10J 3joag

1y0ad ssouo
$1509 FuneradQ
anudAal Funerdadp

'SSO[ 10 31J01d JO JUoWDIeIS

sanuiqery oL,
SONI[IGRI] JUDLIND-UON
SanI|IqeI] JUALIN.)
S)ISSB |810 ],

S}9SSE JUaLIN.)

$19558 JUSLINJ-UON]
Tonsod

TeOURUL JO JUDWRIAIS

£90'F09°F9 £90°815°6 901 THOLYYL - - - 0T69L9'8  T8STILO'L  TTIQYSSI  0STTL81T
0SI‘L90'8LY - 9€5°¢61 91991601 - - - SVETTESS  69S°LYS'L6  680°98T°8L  T66°00T€0T
180°8S€'S9T  (898°0¥1°9) PEL T8ST (€I¥°LSS‘9)  677°9¢ (OTF'ps6'T)  (80€°TSE6T) €P80IL'6T  OIC6£9°TE  OSHOIL'TH  0SSLLE 10T
(I6T0EI09C)  ¥1L°9L0°S (886°91%°C)  11L°GLI (615°01) (r16°699) (690 THL1T) (LI 16£°LS) (¥6ST68°EL) (08LTS098) (S8LTITETI) SANUIADL pue $35UadXD 1Y)

TLE'SBP'ST9  (TR/S'LITII)  TIL'66T'S (PTI'CEL'D) 8PLOY (T16'88T°T)  (6€T°T19°L) OISTOI'LS  $O6°0€S'901 0IT69L'8T1 SEC06S VIS
(IPLPSOTLIT) (8STSSO°S) (TLLEE9 1) (bP9°69€°0T) - (0¥0°€9T°S)  (0L5°880°67) (LETLLIWIT) (L1140T91T) (T€6°S81°SHT) (1L1°189°STh)
CIT'EPI‘86L T  ($TETI1°9) VOV EE6Ol  0TSTEICL  SPL9Y 8TIPLEE TECLLY LT LVS6LTTIOE 1T0°SELTTE THISS6°CLE 90S1LT°0SL
106°€88°7€L  (T68°681°8T)  990°T06'ST  €L£9S0°9T SIS01 016°8LT'9  I6ETHI'LE POL'LLS'SS  6LI'€TO'LIT SLVCI9TEI HET'690°0bE

816°879°08 €8T°TTTTS - - - - - 6LTEOLT  SSFFII'S  T09°LS68S 697 1€9°8
€86'PST'TS9  (SLITIF'08)  990°T06°ST  €L£°950°9T 81501 016°8LT9 16€TVTLE STPYLI'E]  1£9°806°801 9L8°SS9°CTI  S96°LEF'IEE
EPY'88€°L99°T  (SOS'OIS'EPS) E€ST'LPL'8L  SLL'TOL'6L SPL'OVS'L PSP PLST  €8ST008  ISTGI9EEE LPI6ELTLE L6L'S6L08E LEG'EL6'TI0'T
PITBTO'SEE'] (SIV'SE0'IL)  PT8'ESSBL  SOTEE801 SPLOVSL V8P PLS T  €85°C00°8  L990SIS81  £99°00C7ET €9S°0LECET TER'OEESOL
62T°09¢° 7Lt (0S1° I8V TLY)  6TH'E61 €L5°698°8 - - - PIO'8OV'8YL P8V BETOVI  YET'TVLYL  SHOEF96SE°]
[e10], juduysnipe s[eydsoy sjepdsoy  sjejidsoy jusweTeuew  SadIAMRG [eadsopy [endsoy [endso Aueduio)
pajepijosuo)) qaey] |y sudan() 10y OHD  savuwawyd  [edipay  ynodoys |y mmeapeyg pasijeroadg 1endsoyg

d0} swaeyd 10} HHD AN 0are) eyedoa))

9HD

UBWIFAS ord 10} 6] (7 J9qUIE0a(] | € Papus Jeak ayy 10j pajussaid s1 yorym quawdas {oB3 JO AIRWWNS © SI MO[og

(ponunuod) Sunrodaa juowiSog

(pa1B)S 9SIMIBIO SSO[UN SPUNO UeNdATH Ul UMOYS dJe S3J0U dY) Ul SJUNOWE [[y)

0707 YIIBIAl T€ Papua porrad syjuour 23.1)) 3y} a0
SJUIUIA)E)S [RIDUBUI PIJEPI[OSUOD Y} 0} SAJON

SHRVIAISINS SLI ANV «"A'V'Ss, ANVAINOD TVIIISOH VHLVIOATD



8PP IL6'ET

I@Nl

uonerdaidap s1asse paxi
amyupuadxe [ende)

HUEN @ETe)

pouiad Joj jyoag

sonuaaal pue sasuadxe Joy)Q

jjoad ssoan

$1509 FuneradQ

anuaaal Supessdp

'SSO[ 10 J1J0Id JO JUamIalels
sanljiqery [gj0],
SANI[IGRI] JULINI-UON
SonIIqel] Jusmy

sjasse [e10],
$19SS® JULLIND)
$19SSE JUSLINO-UON

L6T16L°T YOV LY6°] 900°899°1 TT0°T8S‘E 61L°786°¢

PI8°699FL - ELLTITT 889VII°T1 LYT100°T 901°1¥¥'6S
$98°6€1°SS PTT'SES ) LOT'S0S'S ThI'LLS'T 9TV IPS'E PIEISO'SY
(10¥'1270°66) 691°CIT’I (ST6'8¥T91) (¥08°8¥1°€2) (99¥'%01°L2) (SLETEL'EE)

99T I91°FSI (€6€°8YL"T) TEIPSL'IT 9¥6'STL'ST 768°SY9°0¢ 689°€8L 8L
(88€°L18°T97) WILPLLT) (196°T1S°8%) (9€1°65¥°05) (656°850°95) (819°186%01)
PS9‘8LE'SIF (6L9°€L6) £60°L6T°0L ¢80°S81°9L 1S8V0L°98 LOES9LESI
9LTYTIbYS ¥0L°686 1€ 6SL°9LS 9L 1€€°698'V6 PLI'6OV 00T 80€°6IT°0¥T
6V9°85S°€C1 YOr 90146 791°6€8 LTI'L6T 629%0¥°9 STETI6'IL
LT9'S9S‘01¥ (00L'911°27) S6S°LELSL YOTTLS V6 SYS 906 €86°L0£891
YTL'086°LLT'T (FIE'0SY°L81) 061°9L1°891 £6£°98¥°T0T 891°€8L°T9T L8T'S86°1€8°]
089°LPL09TT (F1°%79°990) 09L'8¥9°6L LECVLG 6T 0ST'858°9S1 66£068°806
PPO‘CETLIOT (8¥Z°9T8CLI) 0Er° LTS 88 950°TISTL 816'VT6°S01 888V60°€T6

[e10], 1dunsnipe readsoy [endsoy [endsoy Auedwmo)
pajepijosuo)) ynoaoys |y meipeq pasijenadg onte)  [eudsoy eazedos)
9JIN

UONIS0d [eIdURUT JO JUSWILIES

JUSWIZAS oD 10§ 61T YOTRIA [ € popud potsad ayy 10 pauasaid st yorym Juswsos 1JoB3 JO AIeWwIwIns B SI Mo[og

(panunuod) Sunodal yudwgeg

(pajes asimIay1o ssajun spunod uendASH Ul UMOUS 91e S3j0U AU} Ul SJUNOWE [[)

0707 Y2IBIA [ Popud porrdd syjuowr 33.ay) 3y) J0 g
SJUIUIDNE)S [BIDUBULJ PIJEPI[OSUOD IY) 0) SIJON

SHIIVIAISINS SLI ANV «"d'V'S;y ANVAINOD TVLIISOH VILVJOATO



IQMI

9098 IE6  CIO'C6EELT  SIB'Q0S'6E  THIPIOO SE9TE0°6ST £99°808°97 9LL'SYT'EST  T9TOVTELI
FPE609°PIY) - (I19°L1528)  (TLT0£09)  (678°908°T01) (SEOWTLEE) (L6S0£S6E0) -
0S9°SSPOPE T CI0°C6E°CLL  9TP'9ZOTL  PIV'PPO'TI  H9H°6£8°19€ 869°7E£S09 €LEGLLTOY  TITOPTEL]
90£°9¥8°1€6 €10°C6E'CLT  SI8‘80S6E  THIVIO9 SE9°TEO°65T  £99°808°97 9LL'YT'EST  TITOVTELI
LYPE 199 - €9€°€T 8€S°STI = 86ToP 881°9LY -
(s6T‘8s1°0D) - (65T°¢50%)  (LE€8°69E) (6L6°ST0Y) (zs81¢5°1) (zeeiLLton) -

(6L¥'169) - (zLesen) (8gssz1) = (LLveL) (z60°6LY) .

eV 6ES EY 67€°1L0°9¢ T9°r61°C 000°50T 0S8°¢1 c10vE6 665071 =
00€°S6¥'806  ¥99°1TELEL  LSV'LIS'TY  6L6SLL'D YL bH0°€9T 1ZL sV LT €SH'80€°6ST  TOTOPTEL]
00€°S6v°806  FO9ITELEL  LSVLOCIF  6L6'SLLO PILYP0°CoT LTLEEH LT €SH'80€°6ST  T9TOPTELI
(96€°TIT'S6E) - (61L°LLY'8T) (€L6°S8LS)  (0S8°08L°86)  (Iv¥'8CTCE) (£1V'628°6C0) -
969°L09°COE T Y99 1TELEL  9LI'SP8'69  TS6VISTL  P19°ST819¢€ T91°TL9°6S 998°LC1°68Y  T9TOVTSLI
00€°S6¥'806 P99 ITECLEL  LSV'LISIY  6L6'SLLD PILPP0O°€9T 1TL'EEVLT €SP'80€6ST  T9TOPTELI
876°L79°9 - 91L VLI 0LS°8TL - TL8909°1 OLLLITY -
(Z90°v09‘v9) - (9z8'6£T'Cl)  (£58°1TT°1)  (£91°s€6°€1)  (L9V'OpI‘S) (€sL°090°C¢) -

- (P80°CET'8L)  88T'66C°01  00S°90F YOV L80°SE 199v€1°8 1€2°50€9¢C -
(b6S1STL) - 1LvL1) (oLs‘sTL) - (h96°L€9°T) (FPEOLLY) -
IV6°SETCIP €86°160°v61  SP8TISCI 19€°L0LS T09°TL6°6T 8CTIHP'S 71686596 000°116°L9
L8O'L8Y09S S9L°T9¥ 1T 0S1°S6L°6T  1.6°988°] 126°616°11T 18€°5€0°61 LEYLSOILT T9T°67£°501
L8O'L8Y09S  SOLTIF'IT 0SI'S6L'6T  1L6'988‘T 176°616°11T 18€°S€0°61 LEY LSO ILY 797°67€°S01
(T9T'9€T1°LEE) - (609°C1¥91)  (069°T6T°S)  (L89°Sv8F8)  (9r8'869°80) (0cr 988100 -
6VE€T9°L68 S9LT9V' 1T 6SLELOTOY  199°6L1°L 809°69L°967  LTTVELLY LOOPY6 TLE  T9T6TESOL

_Nuorﬁ =050=.5m=00 mh@usm—:OU m@—u_:0> mm—:ﬁ::m— o.:_:_::r..— mou_>®U U:m m—u:ﬁw_
Japun yuwdwdinbd
s30aloag ‘KIourydeA

JUnowy yooq PN
uoperoaldap parg[nwnaoy

1500)

0T0T Y21BJAl [ € JE duRjey
[esodsip jo uoneroeidep pereNUINIIY

pouad 23 10J uonjerveada(y
uonINNSuod Jopun sjoofoid woly sivysueiy,
sresodsi(]

suonippy

junoure j0oq jou swuadQ

0207 Y218\ 1€ IV

junoury yooq 3aN

uoneroadop paje[nuInody

150D

6107 1qUIR( 1€V

junowre yooq 33u 3uiso[)

[esodsip jo uorjerdeidap pele[nuINddy
134 2y} Joj uolgeroaide
uonONAsUOd Jopun sjosford urol) siaysues]
sresodsiq

suonIppy

junowie j00q jau Jutuad

6107 19quIdd3(] I€ POpud dvd
JUnowy Yooq JaN

uoneroaudap poje[nWNIdY

150D

6107 Adenuep | 3y

$19SSB pPAXI] °9

(Paje1s 9sImIALO ssa[un spunog uendASy ul UMOYS a1 SJOU oY) Ul SJUNOWE [[V)

0207 Y2IBIAl I€ PIPUL poLIdd sypuowr 3341} 3y} 10
SJUIUWII)IBIS |RIDUBULY PIJLPI[OSUOD Y} 0} SIJON

SHRIVIAISAAS SLI ANV «"T'V'Ss, ANVAINOD TVLIISOH VILVJOATD



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 202

0

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

7. Business combination and intangible assets

Cost Trade name Goodwill
Balance at 1 January 2019 44,354,000 196,676,034
Acquisition of Queens Hospital - 14,071,000
Acquisition of Al-Kateb Hospital - 158,516,300
Balance at 31 December 2019 44,354,000 369,263,334
Balance at 1 January 2019 44,354,000 369,263,334
Balance at 31 March 2020 44,354,000 369,263,334
The good will is as follows:
Balance at Balance at
1 January Business 31 March
2020 acquisition 2020
Nile Badrawi Hospital 75,853,020 75,853,020
Al Shorouk Hospital S.A.E. 120,823,014 120,823,014
Queens Hospital Works 14,071,000 14,071,000
Al-Kateb Hospital Works 158,516,300 158,516,300
Total 369,263,334 369,263,334
Goodwill

To calculate goodwill, Nile Badrawi Hospital Company S.A.E. and Al-Shorouk Hospital S.A.E. were
considered as a cash generating unit, and goodwill resulting from acquisition was allocated.

Recoverable amount of cash-generating unit is estimated by calculating the value in use, using pre-tax
cash flows based on financial budgets approved by the management, which cover a period of five years
maximum. The management determines the specific assumptions of cash flow forecasts based on past
experience and expectations of the market.

Estimates have been made in terms of sales growth, operating costs and expected gross profit. Future
capital expenditures for future replenishment plans have been taken into account for the same
outstanding assets. A discount rate and a long-term growth rate have been used to reflect the specific
risks associated with the activity and economy sector.

As a result of the effects of the emerging corona virus the management has evaluated the goodwill
impairment on the date of the financial statements by using adjusted cash flow that reflect the actual
data till may 2020 and the expected changes in the following periods including revenue, operating &
capital expenses.

Trade name

The fair value of the trade name is estimated using relief from royalty method. This method determines
the value by referring to the nominal royalty payments, which are provided when acquiring the asset
compared with the license of the asset and trade name by a third party.
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CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Business combination and intangible assets (continued)

Queens Hospital acquisition

On 16 January 2019, Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E signed a contract to transfer the activity of Queen's
Hospital. Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E acquired the assets, inventory and contracted with the employment
of Queens Hospital from the date of acquisition 18 March 2019 with a total of EGP 25 million. The
acquisition resulted in an increase in the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net assets of the
acquired company which was recognized as goodwill as shown in the table above. Cleopatra Hospital
S.A.E has acquired fixed assets except for land and buildings. Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E has signed an
18-year lease contract for the Queens Hospital land and building.

The fair value of net assets was calculated at the acquisition date, which represents assets other than
non-current tangible assets at the date of acquisition.

Queens Hospital was consolidated in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 29 on
Business Combinations as of 18 March 2019, the date on which the acquire effectively controlled the
business and assets acquired by the Company and transferred the ability to control the financial and
operating policies of the Company. Assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

EGP
Acquisition cost
Cash paid 25,000,000
Total acquisition cost 25,000,000
Total fair value of acquired assets (10,929,000)
Intangible asset 14.071.000

EGP
Fixed assets 8,567,000
Medical inventory 1,274,000
Debtors and other debit balances 1,088,000
Total fair value of acquired assets 10,929,000
Intangible asset 14,071,000

ElKateb Hospital acquisition

On 31 August 2017, the Company entered into an initial (conditional) contract for the purchase of the
land and the building of Elkatib Hospital in the Arab Republic of Egypt. On 12 October 2017, the
Company deposited an amount of EGP 143,550,000 under an ESCROW account contract which was
concluded on 4 October 2017, on 13 December 2018, the ownership of the land and the building was
transferred to the company under a public power of attorney and ESCROW account was released as
part of the total acquisition, which includes management and operation of the hospital. On 3 December
2018, the Extraordinary General Assembly approved the acquisition of fixed assets, the management
and operation of the hospital, and on 7 August 2019, the Cleopatra Hospital Company signed a contract
to transfer the Elkateb activity from the Egyptian Hospital Company, and therefore an amount of EGP
135,080,000 was deposited under an ESCROW account, which It was concluded on 7 August 2019. On
1 November 2019, the company has completed the acquisition of the entire works, land and building of
ElKateb Hospital.

The acquisition resulted in an excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the net assets acquired
by the company which were recognized as goodwill. Cleopatra Hospital Company S.A.E has acquired
the fixed assets.
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CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Business combination and intangible assets (continued)

The fair value of the net assets was calculated at the date of acquisition which represents other assets
other than the non-current tangible assets at the date of acquisition. The net assets acquired and goodwill
are as follows:

EGP
Acquisition cost
Cash paid 278,630,000
Total acquisition cost 278,630,000
Fair value of acquired assets:
Land 67,911,000
Buildings 28,350,000
Machinery and Equipment 23,852,700
Fair value of acquired assets 120,113,700
Goodwill 158,516,300
8. Advance payment for investment
31 March 31 December

2020 2019
Advance payment for investment in CHG for Hospitals 15,000,000 -
Advance payment for investment in CSH 6,693,653 -

21,693,653 -

9. Inventories
31 March 31 December
2020 2019

Medical supply inventory 31,228,863 29,073,827
Medicine inventory 28,271,506 15,672,268
Maintenance and spare parts inventory 1,253,658 2,370,177
Stationary inventory 1,659,278 1,429,697
Hospitality inventory 2,544,273 750,298
Food and beverage inventory 138,056 121,999

65,095,634 49,418,266
Less: Impairment of inventory (171,707) (157,656)

64,923,927 49,260,610
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Inventories (continued)

Movement in the provision for inventory is as follows:

31 March 31 December 31 March
2020 2019 2019
Balance at the beginning of the period / 157,656 252,273 252,273
Provisions formed during the period / year 16,202 178,439 161,115
Pr(?YISIOHS no longer required during the (2,151) (221,970) -
period / year
Write-offs during the period / year - (51,086) -
Balance at the end of the period / year 171,707 157,656 413,388
10. Trade receivables
31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Due from customers 464,474,298 404,257,833
Income from inpatients 5,001,626 7,170,738
469,475,924 411,428,571
Less:
Impairment of customers' balances (87,289,258) (74,274,923)
382,186,666 337,153,648

The income from inpatients comprises the revenues that have not been billed at the financial position
date for their stay while the procedures of the medical services have not been completed. Such income

is calculated net of the amounts collected in advance during the year of their stay.

Movement in the provision for impairment is as follows:

31 March 31 December 31 March
2020 2019 2019

Balance at the beginning of the period / year 74,274,923 15,920,165 15,920,165
Provision formed during the period / year 18,750,157 90,136,850 33,861,328
Pr(?YISIOIl no longer required during the (5,735,822) (31,538,796) (2,119,910)
period / year

Used during the period / year - (243,296) -
Balance at the end of the period / year 87,289,258 74,274,923 47,661,583

Trade receivable balances, which have not been due till the financial position date and have no

impairment indicators, amounted to EGP 167,329,632 (2019: EGP 175,266,845).

At the financial position date, the balances that were past due but not impaired amounted to EGP
177,263,096 (31 December 2019: EGP 139,528,894) regarding customers and transactions with no

history of default. The ageing analysis of these balances is as follows:

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Less than one month 60,714,882 54,114,665
From one to five months 116,548,214 85,414,229
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Trade receivables (continued)

The management creates a 100% impairment for customers who are overdue for more than 150 days
from the claim date. After deducting the amounts that expected to be collected after calculating the loss
given default rate. It also creates a group-based provision based on historical failure rates. The
management calculates historical failure rates for each customer per month on the accounts of customers
whose debts exceed 150 days to 360 days from the date of the financial position. Based on these rates,
the management calculates a provision for debts of customers whose debts are not more than 150 days
old. The trade receivables balance which their ages exceeded 150 days as of 31 December 2019
amounted to EGP 177,263,096 (31 December 2019: EGP 89,462,094).

In addition, due to the circumstances of the emerging corona virus. The management determined some
of the customers who they faced problems matching their balances. An extra impairment provision has
been formed against the risk of defaulting.

11. Debtors and other debit balances

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Advances to suppliers 94,645,348 85,296,087
Prepaid expenses 20,491,864 6,584,551
Withholding taxes 1,190,348 817,251
Employees custodies 1,932,938 1,597,912
Deposits with others 4,106,505 4,039,506
Accrued income 2,220,126 2,383,756
Other debtors 4,802,175 4,651,825
129,389,304 105,370,888
Less: Impairment in other debit balances (143,734) (143,734)
129,245,570 105,227,154

The movement of the provision for impairment during the period is as follows:
31 March 31 December 31 March

2020 2019 2019
Balance at 1 January 143,734 911,240 911,240
No longer required - (767,506) -
143,734 143,734 911,240

12. Treasury bills
31 March 31 December

2020 2019
Treasury bills (Maturity 182 days) 53,600,000 53,600,000
Treasury bills (Maturity 91 days) 100,000,000 -
Less: Unearned revenue (4,535,277) (3,500,742)
149,064,723 50,099,258

Treasury bills are entitled to a constant annual return of 11.77% and 11.40% after tax.

-35.



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

13. Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Time deposit 204,315,189 177,021,887
Current accounts 384,875,504 611,891,442
Cash on hand 2,035,162 2,354,510
591,225,855 791,267,839

The time deposits item includes an amount of EGP 194,895,849 (31 December 2019: EGP 167,426,027)
deposited in local banks in the Egyptian pound and payable within one month from the date of deposit
and is subject to a fixed annual rate 0£9.75% (31 December 2019: 12.25% ).

The time deposits item includes an amount EGP 9,419,340 at 31 March 2020 (31 December 2019: EGP
9,595,860) are denominated in local banks in US dollars and are payable within one from the date of
deposit and are subject to a fixed annual return of'2.17% to 2.22%.

Current accounts are subject to a fixed annual rate of 6.5% to 7% (31 December 2019: from 9.5%to

10%).

14. Provisions

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Provision for claims 10,595,033 7,297,337
Provision for human resources 5,519,257 8,261,003
16,114,290 15,558,340
Movement in the provision during the period is as follows:
31 March 2020
Balance at Formed Utilised Provisions Balance at
the beginning  during the during the no longer the end of
of the period period period required the period
Provision for human resources 8,261,003 7,926,938 (1,395,418) (4,197,490) 10,595,033
Provision for claims 7,297,337 154,755 (1,932,835) - 5,519,257
Total 15,558,340 8,081,693 (3,328,253) (4,197,490) 16,114,290
31 December 2019
Balance at the Formed Utilised Provisions Balance at
beginning of during the during the no longer the end of
the year year year required the year
fers"ovlif::; for human 12,042,032 27,238,314  (11,908,806)  (20,010,537) 8,261,003
Provisions for claims 11,959,643 220,000 (4,882,306) - 7,297,337
Total 24,901,675 27,458,314  (16,791,112)  (20,010,537) 15,558,340
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Provisions (continued)

31 March 2019

Balance at Formed Utilised Provisions Balance at
the beginning  during the during the no longer the end of
of the period period period required the period

Provision for human resources 11,959,643 - (1,474,319) - 10,485,324
Provision for claims 12,942,032 4,902,421 (695,806) (2,226,343) 14,922,304
Total 24,901,675 4,902,421 (2,170,125) (2,226,343) 25,407,628

Provision for human resources

Other provisions for human resources include provisions for the restructure of the Company's
employees, the employees leave provision and the provision for the benefits of the employees over 60

years old in accordance with the law.

Provision for claims

Other provisions represent provisions for contingent liabilities on potential claims from certain
authorities and parties regarding the Company's activity. The Company did not disclose the usual
information on the provisions in accordance to the accounting standards as management believes that
doing so may severely affect the outcome of the negotiations with those bodies and authorities. The
management reviews these provisions on a yearly basis, and the allocated amount is adjusted according
to the latest developments, discussions and agreements with such parties.

15. Creditors and other credit balances

Accrued expenses
Suppliers and notes payable
Social insurance

Dividends payable

Other creditors
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31 March 31 December
2020 2019
138,319,514 185,130,961
193,339,077 238,768,735
5,698,306 3,960,937
2,429,642 2,430,224
17,449,354 12,043,673
357,235,893 442,334,530
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16. Employee incentive plan

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Employee incentive plan based on parent company’s 109,072,692
market value of shares 109,072,692
Employee incentive plan based on earning performance 19.999 889
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization ji— 19,999,889
129,072,581 129,072,581

On the 9™ of June 2020, the company paid an amount of 136,833,605 Egyptian pounds to those
deserving the employee incentive plan which ends on 2" of June 2020 according to the plan’s
conditions. The amount was calculated based on a study made by the management and presented to the
committee of nominations which is delegated by the board which includes the method to calculate the
final amount for the employee incentive plan in the light of the formed provision as well as the total
number of units assigned to the plan which amount to 44 million units with a total of 136,833,605
Egyptian pounds. The nominee committee accepted the proposed study and accordingly the
management hasn’t changed the provision amount for this purpose as the change during the period was
insignificant.

The movement during the period is as follows:

Balance at Formed Balance at
1 January during the 31 March
2020 period 2020
Employee incentive plan 129,072,581 - 129,072,581
Total 129,072,581 - 129,072,581
The movement during the year is as follows:
Balance at Formed Balance at
1 January  during the 31 December
2019 year 2019
Employee incentive plan 45,232,497 83,840,084 129,072,581
Total 45,232,497 83,840,084 129,072,581

17. Share capital

Share capital of the Company is EGP 800,000,000 paid share capital distributed across 1,600,000,000

shares

Shareholders structure is as follows:

Percentage of Number of Nominal
Name ownership shares value
Care Healthcare Ltd. 37.87% 605,969,377 302,984,689
Other shareholders 62.13% 994,030,623 497,015,311
Total 100% 1,600,000,000 800,000,000
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18. Reserves

Below is the movement on reserves during the period:

31 March 2020

Balance at formed Balance at
the beginning  during the  the end of the
of the period period period

Legal reserve 64,340,195 - 64,340,195

Special reserve 49,090,006 - 49,090,006

Acquisition reserve (76,532,044) - (76,532,044)

Other reserves 247,496,391 - 247,496,391

Total 284,394,548 - 284,394,548
31 December 2019

Balance at formed Balance at
the beginning during the the end of the

of the year year year

Legal reserve 54,127,298 10,212,897 64,340,195
Special reserve 49,090,006 - 49,090,006
Acquisition reserve (76,532,044) - (76,532,044)
Other reserves 247,496,391 - 247,496,391
Total 274,181,651 10,212,897 284,394,548
a) Legal reserve
In accordance with the Law No. 159 of 1981 and the Company's Articles of Association, 5% of the
net profit for the year shall be transferred to the legal reserve. Based on a proposal by the Board of
Directors, this transfer may be partially discontinued if the legal reserve reaches 50% of the issued
capital. The legal reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.
b) Acquisition reserve
This reserve represents the difference between the value of the acquisition by Cleopatra Hospital
Company S.A.E. and the carrying value of net assets and liabilities of Cairo Specialised Hospital
Company S.A.E. at the acquisition date, as the two companies are under common control. The
reason for the acquisition is the reorganisation of the group companies. Therefore, the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary were transferred at historical cost.
¢) Special reserve
The special reserve represents the amount that was due to Care Healthcare Ltd. (Parent Company).
Valued at EGP 47,379,722 Under the letter issued by the Company on 12 April 2016, both parties
have agreed that this amount shall be claimed only in the case of dissolution or liquidation of the
Company, either voluntary or for any other legal reason. In that case, the due amount shall be
divided between recent shareholders of the Company upon liquidation or dissolution at the same
proportion of their shares in the Company's share capital to the total number of shares issued.
Accordingly, this amount has been recognised as special reserve in equity. In addition to the
resulting reconciliation from treasury shares related to Cairo Specialised Hospital (Subsidiary
Company). Valued at EGP 1,710,284
d) Other reserves

The amount represents the amount transferred from share premium according to the requirements
of Law No.159 of 1981, and there is no movement in this reserve during the year.
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19. Non-controlling interests

Balance at 1 January 2019
Non-controlling interest in the
acquisition of subsidiaries

Minority interests in the acquisition
of subsidiaries

Dividends of employees

Legal reserve

Comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2020
Comprehensive income for the period
Balance at 31 March 2020

20. Operating revenue

Accommodation and medical supervision revenue

Surgeries revenue
Outpatient clinics revenue
Laboratories revenue
Cardiac catheterization revenue
Service charge revenue
Radiology revenue
Emergency revenue
Revenues of oncology centre
Pharmacy revenue

Dentistry revenue
Physiotherapy revenue
Endoscopy revenue

Cardiac tests revenue

Other departments revenues

Share of
minority
interest on
Share Legal Retained settlement of
capital reserve earnings acquisition Total
12,731,320 7,012,203 54,855,863 120,184 74,719,570
22,526,489 - - - 22,526,489
255,000 - - - 255,000
- - (1,526,345) - (1,526,345)
- 1,974 - - 1,974
- - 7,950,019 - 7,950,019
35,512,809 7,014,177 61,279,537 120,184 103,926,707
35,512,809 7,014,177 61,279,537 120,184 103,926,707
- - 5,866,310 - 5,866,310
35,512,809 7,014,177 67,145,847 120,184 109,793,017
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
123,389,971 103,701,839
108,602,387 81,991,653
57,802,048 51,736,474
46,975,910 37,428,486
44,606,708 35,928,052
37,816,907 30,780,415
24,610,274 21,866,902
14,726,332 16,806,978
9,108,520 8,775,747
13,156,912 9,704,682
7,167,903 3,756,270
5,169,228 4,776,362
3,734,011 3,260,289
3,008,035 3,006,860
3,006,272 2,457,645
502,881,418 415,978,654
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21. Operating costs

31 March 31 March

2020 2019
Medical and pharmaceutical supplies 99,204,469 80,909,323
Doctors' fees 87,851,124 74,537,082
Salaries, wages and benefits 90,380,760 67,312,595
Maintenance, spare parts and energy expenses 9,805,764 9,416,552
Consumables costs 11,193,120 12,521,890
Fixed assets depreciation 16,968,645 11,461,490
Other expenses 16,257,143 5,658,456
331,661,025 261,817,388

22. General and administrative expenses
31 March 31 March

2020 2019
Salaries, wages and benefits 38,851,101 47,115,312
Professional and consulting fees 5,258,058 4,443,731
Impairment of trade receivables 13,014,337 31,741,418
Fixed assets depreciation 3,732,451 2,509,958
Maintenance, spare parts and energy expenses 2,961,603 1,258,314
Consumables costs 1,076,334 1,515,704
Rent 1,437,219 862,402
Other expenses 3,684,816 9,200,089
70,015,919 98,646,928
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23. Expenses by nature

Salaries, wages and benefits*

Medical and pharmaceutical supplies
Doctors' fees

Maintenance, spare parts and energy expenses
Fixed assets depreciation

Consumables costs

Impairment of trade receivables

Other expenses

* Employees’ costs

Salaries, wages and incentives
Employees' incentives
Employees' benefits

Social insurance

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
129,231,861 114,427,907
99,204,469 80,909,323
87,851,124 74,537,082
12,767,367 10,674,866
20,701,096 13,971,448
12,269,454 14,037,594
13,014,337 31,741,418
26,637,236 20,164,678
401,676,944 360,464,316
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
106,774,749 83,166,720
4,678,524 22,321,073
11,705,293 4,402,355
6,073,295 4,537,759
129,231,861 114,427,907

Miscellaneous expenses included an amount of EGP 1,441,000 Allowances of members of the Board
of Directors (31 December 2019: EGP 4,351,667).

The item includes wages, salaries, and bonuses amounting to EGP Nil (31 March 2019: EGP
20,778,008) representing the value of the payments that are calculated on the basis of the difference
between the weighted average value of the market value of the parent company’s shares on 2 June 2020
during the six months preceding the history of the financial position and the price The stock, at the date
of its shares being offered on the stock exchange on 2 June 2016. The amount of EGP Zero (31 March
2019: EGP 2,845,933) represents the value of the payments that are calculated on the basis of the
difference between the pre-interest profit performance and income, depreciation and amortization taxes
(EBITDA) on the date Maturity 2 June 2020 and 2 June 2016.

24. Other income

Rent
Capital gains
Miscellaneous income

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
995,348 1,251,070
233,789 236,794
527,223 534,732
1,756,360 2,022,596
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25. Finance income / (expenses)

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Finance income
Interest income 18,290,349 29,379,431
Total finance income 18,290,349 29,379,431
Finance costs
Interest expense (379,893) (2,079,053)
Currency valuation differences (243,866) (1,078,294)
Total finance expenses (623,759) (3,157,347)
Net finance income 17,666,590 26,222,084
26. Income taxes
Income tax expense as stated in the statement of profit or loss includes:
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Current income tax for the period / year 29,681,886 26,303,887
Deferred tax (891,378) (884,069)
28,790,508 25,419,818

The tax on profit before tax theoretically differs from the amount expected to be earned by applying the

average tax rate applicable to the Company's profits as follows:

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Net profit before tax 116,743,221 80,559,683
Income tax calculated based on the applicable local tax rate 26,267,224 18,125,931
Add/ (less):
Non-taxable expenses 4,287,883 7,770,867
Income not subject to tax (2,676,667) (476,980)
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 912,068
Income taxes 28,790,508 25,419,818
Effective tax rate 24.66% 31,55%
Current income tax liabilities 31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Balance at 1 January 62,638,092 69,398,261
Payments during the period / year (5,518,096) (75,674,028)
Current period / year tax 29,681,886 94,261,190
Advance payments to tax authorities - (25,347,331)
86,801,882 62,638,092
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27. Deferred tax

Change in tax assets and liabilities during the period is as follows:

Liabilities

Fixed assets

Fixed assets - Effect of fair value
Intangible assets - Effect of fair value
Total Liabilities

Assets
Provisions (excluding claims provision)
Net deferred tax - liability

Liabilities

Fixed assets

Fixed assets - Effect of fair value
Intangible assets - Effect of fair value
Total Liabilities

Assets
Provisions (excluding claims provision)
Net deferred tax - liability

Liabilities

Fixed assets

Fixed assets - Effect of fair value
Intangible assets - Effect of fair value
Total Liabilities

Assets
Provisions (excluding claims provision)
Net deferred tax - liability

(Expense)/
Income charged Balance at
Balance at to the statement 31 March
1 January 2020  of profit or loss 2020
(Liability) during the period (Liability)
(25,051,476) (249,839) (25,301,315)
(42,242,629) 628,041 (41,614,588)
(9,979,650) - (9,979,650)
(77,273,755) 378,202 (76,895,553)
2,479,269 513,177 2,992,446
(74,794,486) 891,379 (73,903,107)
(Expense)/
Income charged Balance at
Balance at to the statement 31 December
1 January 2019  of profit or loss 2019
(Liability) during the year (Liability)
(15,718,421) (9,333,055) (25,051,476)
(44,754,796) 2,512,167 (42,242,629)
(9,979,650) - (9,979,650)
(70,452,867) (6,820,888) (77,273,755)
3,583,717 (1,104,448) 2,479,269
(66,869,150) (7,925,336) (74,794,486)
(Expense)/
Income charged Balance at
Balance at to the statement 31 March
1 January 2019  of profit or loss 2019
(Liability) during the period (Liability)
(15,718,421) (181,659) (15,900,080)
(44,754,796) 628,041 (44,126,755)
(9,979,650) - (9,979,650)
(70,452,867) 446,382 (70,006,485)
3,583,718 437,687 4,021,405
(66,869,149) 884,069 (65,985,080)
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28. Earnings per share

The basic share of the profit for the period is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period for the
company's shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period after
excluding the distribution of employee dividends.

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
Profit 87,952,713 55,139,865
Minority (5,866,310) (1,635,929)
Distributable profit 82,086,403 53,503,936
Number of shares issued 1,600,000,000 1,600,000,000
Earning per share 0.05 0.03

29. Related parties transactions
During the period / year the Group made transactions with certain related parties. The Balances with
related parties at the financial statements date as well as the transactions during the period were as

follows:

Balances of financial position

Balance due Balance due
from / (to) from / (to)
related parties related parties 31
31 March December
(Related parties) Nature of transaction 2020 2019
Care HealthCare (Parent Expenses paid on behalf of the
Company) parent Company - 1,764,705
Expenses paid on behalf of
Other parties related parties 255,000 255,000
255,000 2,019,705

The transactions with the related parties are the company’s dealings with the subsidiary / associates
companies, whether by buying, selling or exchanging services. Prices, policies and conditions related
to these operations are approved by the company’s management and are on the same basis as dealing
with others.
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30. Tax position

Cleopatra Hospital S.A.E.

(1) Corporate tax

Inspection was made up to 31 December 2014, and a clearance certificate was obtained from
the Tax Authority.

- Tax returns were filed regularly in the legal deadlines.

- 2015 and 2016 were inspected and an internal committee has been formed and the amounts has
been settled.

- 2017 and 2018 inspections is being processed.

(2) Salaries tax
- Inspection was made up to 31 December 2013, and all tax payables were settled, and a clearance
certificate was obtained from the Tax Authority.
- Tax on salaries earnings was inspected for 2014, and the internal committee is finished. and
model A/9 which clarified that the tax has been paid has been received.
- 2015 and 2016 were inspected and settled.
- 2017 and 2018 were inspected and an internal committee has been formed and the amounts has

been settled.

(3) Stamp duty tax
- Inspection was made up to 31 July 2006 and tax was paid.
- Inspection was made up to 2013 and tax was paid.
- Years from 2014 to 2018 inspection is being processed.

(4) VAT
- Inspection was made up to 31 December 2004.
- Inspection was made for sales tax from 2005 to 2014 and differences was settled.
- 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 was not inspected
- Tax returns were filed regularly in the legal deadline.

(5) Advance pavments
- Hospital is subjected to advance payments system after obtaining an approval from the tax
authority regarding such matter (From 1 January 2020 : 31 December 2020)

Cairo Specialised Hospital "S.A.E."

(1) Corporate tax
- The company was inspected from inception till 2008, and all entitlements were paid.

- Years from 2009 till 2014, the inspection has been finalized and settled
- For2015: 2018, the company is being inspected currently.

(2) Tax on salaries and wages
- The Company was inspected since the inception of activity to 2013, and all tax dues were paid.
- Inspection was made from 2014: 2018, the tax was paid and the delay fine was transferred to

the appeals committee.
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Tax position (continued)

(3) Stamp duty
- The Company was inspected since the inception to 31 July 2006, and all entitlements were paid.

- The Company was assessed on presumptive basis from August 2006 to 2013, reinspection and
full payment were made.

- Inspection was made from 2014 to 2016 and tax was paid.

- Years from 2014:2016 were inspected, and all dues were paid.

- Years 2017 and 2018 were not inspected.

(4) YAT
- The Company registered in April 2017.
- Tax returns were filed monthly in the legal deadline.

(5) Advance pavments
- Hospital is subjected to advance payments system after obtaining an approval from the tax
authority regarding such matter (From 1 January 2020 : 31 December 2020).

Nile Badrawi Hospital

(1) Corporate tax
- Years up to 2012 were settled, and all dues were paid.
- 2013 and 2014 were inspected and an internal committee has been formed and the amounts has
been settled.
- 2015 and 2016 are re-inspected and internal committee was completed and payment is being
processed.
- For 2017 and 2018 are re-inspected and the payment is being processed currently.

(2) Salaries tax
- Years up to 2011 were inspected, settled, and paid. No tax is due for the years up to 2011.
- Tax was inspected for the years from 2012 to 2016 and it was objected and re-inspected and
internal committee has been formed
- 2017 and 2018 has not bee inspected yet.

(3) Stamp duty

- Years up to 31 July 2006 were inspected and paid.

- Years from | August 2006 up to 2014 are currently being inspected. There is a claim of EGP
220,960, for which an objection was filed on 31 October 2016 and internal committee has been
formed and all amounts due for these years have been settled and paid.

- Years from 2015 to 2017 were inspected and paid.

- 2018 has not been inspected yet.

(4) VAT
- The Company registered in April 2017.
- Tax returns were monthly submitted in the legal deadline.

(5) Advance payments
- Hospital is subjected to advance payments system after obtaining an approval from the tax
authority regarding such matter (From 1 January 2020: 31 December 2020).
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Tax position (continued)

Al Shorouk Hespital S.A.E.

(1) Industrial and commercial profits tax
- Years from 2014 to 2018 have been inspected, payment was made, tax differences were settled.

(2) Salaries tax
- The Company was inspected and settled up to 31 December 2004 and settled.
- Internal committees were formed for 2005 to 2014.
- For2015: 2018, the company is being inspected currently.

(3) Stamp duty tax
- The Company was inspected up to 31 December 2013, and settlement was made.
- Years from 2014 to 2016 were inspected and internal committee has been formed and all amounts
due for these years have been and paid.
- For2017: 2018, internal committee was formed, and differences were paid.

(4) VAT
- The Company was registered since April 2017.
- Tax returns annually submitted in its legal deadline.

(5) Advance payments
- Hospital is subjected to advance payments system after obtaining an approval from the tax
authority regarding such matter [ From 1 January 2020: 31 December 2020 ]

31. Commitments
Capital commitments:

Capital commitments related to fixed assets at financial year end, which are not yet due, amounted to
EGP 83,424,490 (31 December 2019: EGP 7,994,121).
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32. Right of use

Lease liabilities

31 March 31 December

2020 2019
During one year 3,365,748 3,068,741
More than a year 8,202,826 9,168,016

11,568,574 12,236,757
Discount rate 16.65% 16.65%
The present value of the lease obligations is as follows:
During one year 2,793,532 2,651,440
More than a year 5,385,289 5,834,432
Balance 8,178,821 8,485,872

Right of use:
The right of use is a lease contract related to medical equipment that was measured at the beginning of

the contract at a value equal to the value of the lease obligations in addition to the rental expenses and
1s subsequently depreciated over the life of the lease using the straight line.

31 March 31 December
2020 2019
Beginning balance 10,247,595 -
Additional during the period / year - 10,646,173
Depreciation (542,800) (398,578)
9,704,795 10,247,595

-49 -



CLEOPATRA HOSPITAL COMPANY “S.A.E.” AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the three months period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

33. Significant events

On February 13, 2020, Cleopatra Hospital Company, the General Authority for River Transport and
Nile Badrawi Hospital Company and the heirs of the late Engineer Hassan Badrawi signed a
comprehensive and final settlement agreement according to which agreement was reached to resolve,
settle and end all disputes and claims related to the land on which the Nile Badrawi Hospital is located,
And it was also agreed that both the General Authority for River Transport and the Nile Badrawi
Hospital Company will give up disputes arising from each of them regarding the land subject to
settlement. The total settlement amounted to 36 million Egyptian pounds as part of the settlement
located within the confiscated amounts from the sale of shares of the Nile Badrawi Hospital to the
Cleopatra Hospital. Negotiations are also being held with the Nile Badrawi Hospital shareholders on
the final settlement of any matters related to the company and the sellers.

When it comes to the outbreak of the emerging corona virus effect on the financial services from a
financial perspective, the management has reviewed the decrease in receivables, and they formed extra
provisions against the expected effects (Disclosure 10). As well as reviewing the intangible assets
impairment using adjusted valuations to reflect the current circumstances and the expectation for those
assets, resulting in no decrease in the assets.

The management also reviewed the working capital’s position and liquidity in light of the increase of
inventory retention to control the risk of supplies and medical services inflow, and the management
thinks that the expected effect is going to be insignificant as there is adequate liquidity.

Regarding operation risks, the Group’s number one priority is guaranteeing the safety and wellbeing of

its staff, both medical and non-medical, and of its patients and their families. Across all eight of the

Group’s medical facilities and offices health and safety protocols have been tightened, with additional

measures including:

e Daily deep cleaning and sterilization of all medical and non-medical facilities.

Provision of necessary Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for all staff and patients.

Strict internal hygiene and sanitization protocols for all medical staff, patients, and visitors.

Infrared temperature screening at all group hospital entrances.

Switch to facial recognition and away from fingerprint identification across all CHG facilities.

New patient engagement and visitor management protocols to minimize the risk of exposure.

New ER and outpatient clinic protocols to ensure prompt detection, isolation, and reporting of all

potential COVID-19-positive patients.

* Lourteen days of paid leave, with extensions granted on a case-by-case basis, for all staff working
in high-risk departments and who are suspected of having encountered potential COVID-19-
positive cases.

»  Work-from-home arrangement for all non-medical staff with limited access to the Group’s offices
granted on a rotational basis.

¢ o parallel, the Group has enhanced its Hospital Incident Command System to guarantee CHG’s
ability to adapt to the evolving COVID-19 situation from an operational point of view. As of today,
measures include:

- The draw up of an emergency staffing plan to ensure the Group can meet round-the-clock
staffing needs.

- Back-office contingency planning to ensure business continuity.

- Engagement programme with the Group’s consultants to address any needs or concerns that
may arise.
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-50-



	CHC CONS Q1 2020 (EN)
	Cons. English
	CHC CONS Q1 2020 (EN)

